
E X E C U T I V E  C H A M B E R S  
K E  K E ʻ E N A  O  K E  K I A ʻ Ā I N A  

 JOSH GREEN, M.D.  
 GOVERNOR  
 KE KIAʻĀINA 

 

 
Build Beyond Barriers Working Group Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023, 2:30 P.M. 
Page 1 of 7 

Build Beyond Barriers Working Group (BBB) 
 

Tuesday, November 14, 2023 
 

2:30 P.M. 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

MEETING RECORDING: https://www.facebook.com/olelocommunity/videos/live-build-beyond-
barriers-working-group-meeting/907905370274185  
 
 
I. Call to Order [00:08:55] 

Mary Alice Evans, Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:39 P.M. and outlined meeting protocols 
for the virtual Zoom meeting. She emphasized the limitations on testimony time and stressed 
the importance of maintaining virtual meeting etiquette.  
 
No written testimony was received for this meeting. 
 

II. Member Roll Call [00:11:10] 
Chair Evans conducted the roll call to establish a quorum.  
 

No. Representatives Name  
1 Office of Planning and Sustainable Development  Mary Alice Evans, Chair  
2 Department of Business Economic Development and Tourism  Absent 
3 Hawaii Housing Finance Development Corporation  Dean Minakami, Co-chair 
4 Department of Land and Natural Resources  Dawn Chang  
5 State Historic Preservation Division Absent 
6 Commission on Water Resource Management  Absent 
7 Land Use Commission  Scott Derrickson  
8 Department of Health  Absent 
9 Department of Transportation  Absent 

10 Hawaii Public Housing Authority  Hakim Ouansafi, Co-chair  
11 Department of Budget and Finance  Luis Salaveria  
12 Island Burial Council, Hawaiʻi  Absent 
13 Island Burial Council, Kauaʻi/Niʻihau  Absent 

https://www.facebook.com/olelocommunity/videos/live-build-beyond-barriers-working-group-meeting/907905370274185
https://www.facebook.com/olelocommunity/videos/live-build-beyond-barriers-working-group-meeting/907905370274185


 

 
Build Beyond Barriers Working Group Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023, 2:30 P.M. 
Page 2 of 7 
 

No. Representatives Name  
14 Island Burial Council, Maui/Lānaʻi  Absent 
15 Island Burial Council, Molokaʻi  Keomailani Hanapi Hirata 
16 Island Burial Council, Oʻahu  Kamanaʻo Mills 
17 Chair of legislative subject matter committees relating to housing  Rep. Micah Aiu  
18 Chair of legislative subject matter committees relating to housing  Sen. Stanley Chang  
19 Mayor, City & County of Honolulu  Absent  
20 Mayor, County of Hawai’i   Absent 
21 Mayor, County of Kaua’i   Absent 
22 Mayor, County of Maui  Absent 
23 County Office of Housing & Community Development, Hawaiʻi  Susan Kunz 
24 County Planning Department, Hawaiʻi  Zendo Kern   
25 County Department of Public Works, Hawaiʻi  Malia Kekai 
26 City and County Department of Planning and Permitting, Honolulu  Absent 
27 City and County Office of Housing, Honolulu Absent 
28 County Housing Agency, Kauaʻi  Adam Roversi 
29 County Planning Department, Kauaʻi  Absent 
30 County Department of Housing and Human Concerns, Maui  Lori Tsuhako 
31 County Planning Department, Maui  Absent 
32 County Department of Water Supply, Hawaiʻi  Keith Okamoto 
33 Board of Water Supply, Honolulu Absent 
34 County Department of Water Supply, Kauaʻi Joe Tait 
35 County Department of Water Supply, Maui Absent 
36 Hawaiian Electric Company Absent 
37 Kauaʻi island Utility Cooperative Absent 
38 Honua Consulting  Trisha Watson [Left at 2:55 P.M.] 
39 The Executive Director of Housing Hawaiʻi's Future  Sterling Higa  
40 Economic Research Organization at the University of Hawaiʻi  Carl Bonham  
41 The Executive Director of the Sierra Club of Hawaiʻi   Wayne Tanaka  
42 The Executive Director of the Land Use Research Foundation  David Arakawa 
43 Department of the Attorney General Linda Chow 
44 State Housing Team Scott Glenn 

   
 

III. Approval of the August 29, 2023, Build Beyond Barriers Meeting Minutes [00:20:53] 
 

Chair Evans called for a motion to approve the August 29, 2023 meeting summary. 
  
Member Kern made a motion to approve the August 29, 2023 meeting summary. [00:21:19] 
 
Member Arakawa seconded the motion. 
 



 

 
Build Beyond Barriers Working Group Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023, 2:30 P.M. 
Page 3 of 7 
 

Public Testimony: None. 
 

Member Discussion: [00:21:35] 
Member Hirata expressed concerns about the format of the meeting minutes, questioning 
whether they should be detailed transcriptions or summaries. She also raised issues regarding 
the listing of testifier names and details of member discussions in the minutes. 
 
Chair Evans clarified the current format follows the Sunshine Law, allowing for meeting 
summaries and timestamps for compliance.  
 
Member Hirata sought clarification on the decision-making process for the structure of the 
minutes and suggested improvements for future minutes, including the identification of 
testifiers and more details on the member discussions. She also inquired about the current 
status of the lead housing officer position and requested the new leads to identify themselves.  
 
Chair Evans confirmed there is no current lead housing officer and introduced the team that 
would lead the Build Beyond Barriers Working Group comprising herself, Dean Minakami, and 
Hakim Ouansafi. 
 
Member Kern suggested a future briefing for members on parliamentary procedures for a better 
understanding and smoother meeting operations.  
 
Member Tanaka requested that the issues he raised during the member discussion between 
himself and Member Higa at the August 29, 2023, meeting be included in the minutes.  
 
Call for a Vote: [00:30:24] 
 
Chair Evans conducted the vote by roll call. 
 
The motion to approve the Build Beyond Barriers, August 29, 2023, Meeting Summary was 
carried by a roll call vote.  
 
Roll call vote: Ayes, 15; Ayes with reservations, 3: Arakawa, Mills, Tanaka; Noes, 1: Hirata; 
Abstain, 1: Kekai.  

 

IV. Hawaiʻi County Planning Department and Department of Public Works request for 
suspensions to chapters 76, 86, and 86C, Hawaiʻi Revised Statutes to hire a total of 19 full-time 
positions (Hawaiʻi County Planning Department – 9 full-time, and Department of Public Works 
– 10 full-time positions) [00:35:58] 

 



 

 
Build Beyond Barriers Working Group Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023, 2:30 P.M. 
Page 4 of 7 
 

Summary of the application by Hawaiʻi County Planning Department and Department of 
Public Works [00:37:40] 
 
Member Kern discussed the challenges the planning department is facing due to staff shortages 
and the challenges in recruitment and retention due to long hiring processes and staff turnover 
caused by burnout. Both departments are understaffed by 25%. He emphasized both 
departments focus on various permit-related activities, prioritizing affordable housing and 
climate-related projects.  
 
Member Kekai highlighted the importance of having a reliable permitting system and echoed 
similar challenges in recruitment and staffing. She pointed out difficulties in filling positions 
historically and expressed hope that the suspension would assist in improving the situation.  
 
Member Arakawa made a motion to accept the request of the Hawaiʻi County Planning 
Department and Department of Public Works for suspensions under chapters 76, 89, and 89C, 
Hawaiʻi Revised Statutes, to hire 19 full-time positions. [00:40:54] 
 
Member Okamoto seconded the motion. 

 
 
Public Testimony: [00:41:38] 

 
Vernelle Oku expressed concerns about the idea of lowering the standard of construction, 
suggesting that it may not be a good idea due to potential consequences, emphasizing the 
importance of maintaining standards to avoid negative outcomes or repercussions in the future. 
[00:42:43] 
 
Member Discussion: [00:43:44] 

Member Hirata requested clarification on the necessity of suspending specific chapters of the 
Hawaiʻi Revised Statutes and questioned if such a broad suspension was beneficial. She 
expressed concern about the implications of suspending large portions of the statutes and 
inquired about the specific challenges in the recruitment process. 
 
Member Kern explained the difficulties in finding qualified applicants and the lengthy, 
bureaucratic process, often leading to losing potential hires to other job offers. 
 
Member Kekai added that the pre-screening process sometimes filters out good candidates due 
to technicalities in the application process. She reassured the members that the qualifications 
standards for the positions would not be compromised.  
 
Co-chair Ouansafi strongly supported the county’s initiative, citing multiple reasons. He 
described the hiring process as overly complicated and time-consuming, often taking three to six 
months. This delay leads to potential hires accepting jobs elsewhere. Staffing shortages create 
bottlenecks in various departments, hindering progress in housing and related areas. He argued 



 

 
Build Beyond Barriers Working Group Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023, 2:30 P.M. 
Page 5 of 7 
 

for the need to expedite the hiring process, suggesting that the counties, like their state 
partners, should be allowed to proceed under the proclamation for recruitment and 
procurement automatically. Co-chair Ouansafi shared an example of a recent hiring event led by 
his Department, Hawaiʻi Public Housing Authority, where 57 people were interviewed in four 
hours, ultimately leading to 22 conditional job offers. This event highlighted the efficiency gains 
possible through the process. He clarified that the intention is not to reduce requirements or 
qualifications, but to improve the speed and efficiency of hiring qualified personnel.  Also, he 
expressed hope that future iterations of the proclamation would automatically exempt counties 
from the standard civil service hiring process enabling them to serve public needs.  
 
Member Tanaka expressed uncertainty about the specific role of the group in approving 
suspension not directly connected to particular projects. He emphasized the need for these 
approvals to support only affordable housing initiatives.  
 
Linda Chow, Deputy Attorney General, clarified the supportive role of agencies hiring staff to 
facilitate affordable housing projects, indicating that it aligns with the BBB’s objectives.  
 
Member Tanaka raised concerns about focusing only on affordable housing projects and 
compliance with the provisions of the proclamation. He suggested an amendment to ensure the 
new positions would concentrate solely on affordable projects outlined in the proclamation. 
 
Chair Evans requested member Tanaka to propose an amendment to be considered formally.  
 
Member Tanaka made a motion to amend the main motion to require that the hired staff 
focus would be on affordable housing projects. [01:04:46] 
 
No member seconded the motion. Chair Evans returned the discussion to the main motion.  
 
Member Arakawa referred to the emergency proclamation's language regarding chapters 76, 
89, and 89 C, highlighting the provision for hiring qualified personnel or contractors involved in 
housing. He proposed amending his motion to align with the emergency proclamation, 
specifying the necessity of hiring personnel directly involved in housing. 

 
Member Arakawa amended his original motion: Subject to the applicable emergency 
proclamation and to the extent necessary to allow for qualified personnel or contractors to be 
hired that would be directly involved in housing, we would approve Hawaiʻi County Planning 
Department and Department of Public Works request for suspensions to chapters 76, 89, and 
89C, Hawaii Revised Statutes to hire a total of 19 full-�me posi�ons (Hawaii County Planning 
Department — 9 full-�me, and Department of Public Works - 10 full-�me posi�ons). [01:06:25] 
 
Seconded by Member Okamoto. 
 
Member Hirata expressed gratitude for the changes. She asked about the possibility of seeking 
temporary assistance from other counties for staffing shortages. 
 



 

 
Build Beyond Barriers Working Group Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023, 2:30 P.M. 
Page 6 of 7 
 

Member Kern acknowledged the question and noted that all counties seem to be facing similar 
situations, and hence, no such requests for assistance have been made. 
 
Member Hirata inquired about backlogs in the Planning Department due to staffing shortages 
and the occurrence of violations or after-the-fact permitting. 
 
Member Kern spoke about the backlogs and operational challenges, while Member Kekai 
addressed issues with as-built permits. Member Hirata recommended developing a system to 
track such issues. 
 
Member Hirata noted that the hiring challenges are not limited to specific departments but are 
widespread across state and county levels, affecting various areas, including planning and 
building inspections. She expressed concern about the effects of staffing shortages on the 
preservation of historical and cultural sites, particularly burial sites. She emphasized the 
importance of having sufficient staff to ensure that these sites are not compromised in the 
name of progress and development. As a chair of the burial council and a planning commission 
member, Hirata underscored her responsibility to ensure proper checks and balances are 
maintained in project approvals. Member Hirata thanked the participants for the discussion and 
their efforts to address the hiring challenges, highlighting the importance of filling all positions 
to maintain a balance in preserving cultural and historical integrity. 
 
Call for a Vote: [01:24:39] 

Chair Evans called a vote for the amended motion.  
 
The amended mo�on: Subject to the applicable emergency proclamation and to the extent 
necessary to allow for qualified personnel or contractors to be hired that would be directly 
involved in housing, we would approve Hawaiʻi County Planning Department and Department of 
Public Works request for suspensions to chapters 76, 89, and 89C, Hawaii Revised Statutes to 
hire a total of 19 full-�me posi�ons (Hawaii County Planning Department — 9 full-�me, and 
Department of Public Works - 10 full-�me posi�ons) was carried unanimously.  

 
 
V. Announcements [01:24:55] 

 
Chair Evans made the following announcements: 

- Next meeting:  
o The next meeting date and time will be posted to the Governor’s Housing 

Team website at https://hale.hawaii.gov. 
- Housing Pipeline:  

o The housing team is developing a comprehensive database to efficiently 
manage and monitor various projects promoting affordable housing in the 
state. This database will be made available online as soon as it is ready. 

- PRO Housing Grant: 
o The state of Hawaiʻi has submitted a significant proposal to the United 

States Department of Housing and Urban Development under the 



 

 
Build Beyond Barriers Working Group Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023, 2:30 P.M. 
Page 7 of 7 
 

“Pathways to Removing Obstacles to Housing” grant program. The 
application requests $9.9 million to address eight critical barriers to 
affordable housing production and establish a statewide infrastructure 
bank. The grant aims to unlock 10,800 housing units statewide. If awarded, 
the project is anticipated to start in late February. Updates on this initiative 
will be provided as they become available.  
 

VI. Adjournment [01:27:48] 
 
Chair Evans called for a motion to adjourn the BBB meeting. 

Co-chair Ouansafi made a motion to adjourn the meeting. [01:27:50] 

Seconded by Member Mills. 

The motion to adjourn the meeting was carried unanimously. 

The BBB mee�ng adjourned at 3:57 P.M.  



E X E C U T I V E  C H A M B E R S  
K E  K E ʻ E N A  O  K E  K I A ʻ Ā I N A  

 JOSH GREEN, M.D. 
 GOVERNOR 
 KE KIAʻĀINA 

 
 

December 11, 2023 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Dean Minakami, Co-chair 
  Build Beyond Barriers Working Group 
 
  Hakim Ouansafi, Co-chair 
  Build Beyond Barriers Working Group 
 
  Mary Alice Evans, Co-chair 
  Build Beyond Barriers Working Group 
 
FROM:  Office of the Governor, Housing Team 
 
SUBJECT: Inclusion of the 1060 Bishop Street Project as a Build Beyond Barriers Working 

Group Agenda Item 
 
The Office of the Governor’s Housing Team received  1060 Bishop Street, LLC’s application for 
consideration by the Building Beyond Barriers Working Group (BBB) for its 1060 Bishop Street 
project on Monday, December 4, 2023. The Housing Team respectfully proposes to include this 
project as an agenda item to be discussed at the upcoming BBB meeting on December 20, 2023.   
  
Project Overview:  
 
1060 Bishop Street, originally constructed in 1954, is an adaptive reuse project under Chapter 32 
of the City and County of Honolulu’s Revised Ordinances, commonly referred to as Bill 7, 2019. 
This seven-story office-to-residential conversion project -- spearheaded by Robert Kurisu -- will 
create 52 new, affordable apartment units for those at or below 80% of the area median income 
(AMI). The unit distribution includes 17 studios, 30 one-bedroom apartments, and 5 two-
bedroom units.   
  
Project Proponent Request:  
 
The developer of the 1060 Bishop Street project is requesting an exemption to Section 302A-
1601 to 1612, HRS, School Impact Fees from the Department of Education.     
  



BBB Co-chairs: Dean Minakami, Hakim Ouansafi, and Mary Alice Evans  
Inclusion of the 1060 Bishop Street Project as a BBB Agenda Item 
December 11, 2023 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Justification for Recommendation:  
 
After conducting a comprehensive review of the application on Wednesday, December 6, 2023, 
the Housing Team found the following key points supporting the recommendation:  
  

• The project meets affordability criteria in the Second Proclamation Relating to 
Affordable Housing, section II, A-4, offering units to applicants who earn between 
0% - 140% AMI, with a specific focus on those at 80% AMI;  
 

• The project satisfies the nine-point criteria required for BBB consideration, as 
outlined in §5 of the Rules Relating to the Implementation of the Second 
Proclamation Relating to Affordable Housing; and 
 

• The proponent has demonstrated the necessary skill and experience to build and 
manage a project of the intended size and scope, exemplified by its 2018 completion 
of Kahauiki Village -- a 144-unit, plantation-style permanent housing for formerly 
homeless families.  
 

If you have any questions regarding the proposed recommendation, please contact the Housing 
Team at gov.housing@hawaii.gov.   
  

 

mailto:gov.housing@hawaii.gov


1

Form BBB-1 (10/23)

STATE OF HAWAII
BUILD BEYOND BARRIERS WORKING GROUP

PROJECT APPLICATION FORM

Under the Governor’s Second Proclamation Relating to Affordable Housing, dated October 24, 
2023, and any successive Proclamations issued, the Build Beyond Barriers Working Group shall 
review and approve affordable housing projects submitted for certification under the Proclamation.

Exhibits Required at Submission

Exhibit 1 DCCA Certificate of Good Standing

Exhibit 2 Proof of project site control (e.g., deed, agreement of sale, long-term lease, option 
to lease, or other disposition)

Exhibit 3 Conceptual site plan showing the basic relationship between proposed uses and 
illustrating the approximate location of existing and proposed structures, parking 
areas, site access, open space, unusual site areas, major drainage facilities, 
ground disturbances, and other major site features.

Submittal Instructions

Applicants can submit the application in the following ways:

- Email the completed PDF along with the  to gov.housing@hawaii.gov with the
subject: BBB Pro  Application; OR

- Use this PDF as a reference and complete the electronic form that can be accessed and
submitted here: Project Application. If you have trouble opening this form, please contact
the Housing Team at gov.housing@hawaii.gov for assistance.



2 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

Section I.  Applicant Information 

Pursuant to §§5(1), (3), and (4) of the Proclamation Rules, an Applicant shall provide the Working 
Group with background and contact information for all members of the project team.  The 
Applicant shall describe their experience with or involvement in the development of housing 
projects as well as any past or current experience or involvement in programs or the provision of 
services that would give evidence to their ability to manage a project of this type and scope. 

A. Project Name and Applicant Information
Project Name: 

Date of 
Submission: 

Applicant Name: 

Applicant Tax ID Number 

Applicant Contact: Phone Number: 

Applicant Address: Fax Number: 

Email Address: 

B. Applicant Organization / Entity
Non-Profit Organization 
Qualified, existing 501(c)(3) or (4) organization, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Private Developer 
Select the appropriate business structure: 

Limited Partnership General Partnership

Corporation Limited Liability Corporation

Other (please describe):

Government 
Identify the level of government and department / agency: 

State Government

County Government County Name:  

Department / Agency: 

1060 Bishop Street

11/27/2023

1060 Bishop Street, LLC

GE 084-460-9536-01 / FEIN 99-0339470

Robert K. Kurisu 808-439-8127

1000 Bishop Street
Suite 810
Honolulu, HI 96813

808-533-7829

robertk@wkfinc.com



3 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

C. Evidence of Applicant Status
If the Applicant is a corporation or other legal entity, attach as Exhibit 1 evidence of the Applicant’s status and 
registration with the Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs. 

Submit Exhibit 1 – DCCA Certificate of Good Standing 

N/A. 

D. Applicant Experience
Briefly describe the Applicant’s experience and  managing affordable housing projects.  
Include the names of properties, type of development, number of units, location, any federal and local subsidy 
programs, and terms of involvement.  Please include any other relevant information regarding the overall 
experience the Applicant has in developing housing or projects of similar scope, size, and complexity. 

Additional information may be included as an attachment to this Application. 

Our company and its principals have affordable housing development experience in
the project known as Kahauiki Village - a plantation-style permanent housing
community off Nimitz Highway in Honolulu for formerly-homeless families.

The 144-unit project sits on 11.3 acres and is home to over 600 adults and children in
partnership with the Institute of Human Services as the, core service provider,
Newmark Grubb as the property manager and Parents and Children Together, which
runs the on-site early childhood daycare and preschool. An integrated off-grid
renewable energy micro-grid was designed, the first application of a solar-powered
microgrid to an entire residential community in Hawaii. Each home is also powered by
a shared PV system with Tesla battery storage.

The project also features a recreation/sport court, community room, laundry facility,
convenience store, gardens, and fisheries.

The State and City and County of Honolulu were also partners in the Project.



4 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

E.  Project Team Information - Developer 
Developer Name: 

      
Developer Contact: Phone Number: 
            
Developer Address: Fax Number: 
      
      
      

      
Email Address: 
      

Role / Responsibility: 

      

 
 

F.  Project Team Information - Consultant 
Consultant Name: 

      
Consultant Contact: Phone Number: 
            
Consultant Address: Fax Number: 
      
      
      

      
Email Address: 
      

Role / Responsibility: 

      

  

1060 Bishop Street, LLC

Robert Kurisu

1000 Bishop Street, Suite 810
Honolulu, HI 96813

808-439-8127

808-533-7829

robertk@wkfinc.com

Principal and manager

Watanabe Ing LLP

Lori C. Lum

First Hawaiian Center
999 Bishop Street, Suite #1250
Honolulu, HI 96813

808.544.8343

808.544.8399

llum@wik.com

Affordable housing and office-to-conversion consultant, public affairs, community outreach, government
communications, legal representation and other assistance



5 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

Section II.  Site Information 
 
Pursuant to §§5(2), (6), and (7) of the Proclamation Rules, an Applicant shall provide proof it has 
site control of the project site.  The Applicant shall also describe the project site(s), proposed and 
existing buildings, unusual site features, proposed and existing major drainage facilities, and 
infrastructure capacity and needs. 
 

A.  Project Location 
Project Address: 

      
      
      

Tax Map Key(s) (TMK): 

      
County 

      
Island 

      
Special design or management districts: 

      
 
 

B.  Site Size 
Acres:       
Square Feet:       

 
 

C.  Present Legal Owner of the Project Site 
Owner Name: 

      
Owner Address: 

      
      
      

  

1060 Bishop Street
Honolulu, HI 96813

210120010000

Honolulu

Oahu

n/a

0.1611
7,019

1060 Bishop Street, LLC

1000 Bishop Street, Suite 810
Honolulu, HI 96813



6 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

D.  Site Control Status 

 Own Site – Fee Simple 

 Executed Ground Lease Expires on:        

 Option to Purchase Expires on:        

 Option to Lease Expires on:        

 Other Describe:        

Expires on:        
 
 

E.  Site Control Status 
Attach as Exhibit 2 proof that the Applicant has site control (e.g., a deed, agreement of sale, long-term lease, option 
to lease, or other disposition). 

 Submit Exhibit 2 – Proof of Site Control 

 
 

F.  Availability of Utilities & Off-Site Improvements 
Describe the existing infrastructure capabilities and any planned or potential expansion of infrastructure needed for 
the project. 

Availability of Utilities Yes No 
Will the project utilize gas for cooking or water heating? 

 If yes, is gas service currently available to the site? 
 
 

 
 

Is electricity service currently available to the site?   
Is sewer/septic service currently available to the site for the number/type of units proposed?   
Is water currently available to the site for the number/type of units proposed?   
Does the site have a hook-up to telephone service?   
Does the site have a hook-up to cable or internet service?   
Are there any environmental concerns associated with the site? 

 Is the project located on or near a brownfield? 
 
 

 
 

  

✔



7 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

F. Availability of Utilities & Off-Site Improvements (cont.)
i. Water
Existing:       

Planned 

ii. Sewer
Existing:       

Planned 

iii. Drainage
Existing:       

Planned 

existing

existing

existing



8 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

F.  Availability of Utilities & Off-Site Improvements (cont.) 
iv.  Roads 
Existing:       

Planned       

v.  Electrical 
Existing:       

Planned       

vi.  Gas 
Existing:       

Planned       

 
  

existing

existing

none

none planned



9 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

F. Conceptual Site Plan
Attach as Exhibit 3 a conceptual site plan which shows the general development of the project site, including: 

 Location and description of existing and proposed buildings; 
 Parking areas; 
 Unusual site features; 
 Existing and proposed major draining facilities; and 
 Existing and proposed ground disturbances. 

 Submit Exhibit 3 – Conceptual Site Plan 

Section III.  Development Plan 

Pursuant to §5(6) of the Proclamation Rules, an Applicant shall provide a development plan which 
includes the number of units, including by AMI, maximum occupancy, construction method, and 
schedule of construction. 

III.A.  Project Classification
What type of project is the Applicant planning?  Check all that apply. 

  Apartment Building 

  Garden Style   Mid-Rise   High-Rise 

  Cluster   Single-Family Dwelling Units 

  Townhouse    Duplex, Triplex, Fourplex 

  New Construction   Rehabilitation   Acquisition 

Type of Construction: 

      

Number of Buildings: 

 

✔

■

■

■

adaptive reuse, office to residential conversion. existing structure is concrete/steel
frame

1



10 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

Building Description: 

      

B. Project Unit Mix
Fill in the appropriate number in the table below. 

No. of Bldgs. Studios 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR Total Units 

Gross Bldg. 
Area (sq. ft.) SF / Unit SF / Unit SF / Unit SF / Unit SF / Unit 

Gross 
Residential 

Area 

                       
Common Area (in gross square feet)       

Commercial Space (in gross square feet)      
Structured Parking Area (in gross square feet)  

Total Area       

C. Income and Affordability Restrictions
Fill in the number of units the applicant will set-aside as part of any income and affordability restrictions. 

Restricted at % of AGMI* Number of Units Percent of Total Units 

 % of AMGI       units      % 

 % of AMGI       units      % 

 % of AMGI       units      % 

Total Affordable Units       units 

Market Rate Units       units      % 

Total Number of Units       units      % 

*AMGI = Average Median Gross Income

originally built in 1954, the seven-story former office building (including penthouse) also
contains ground floor retail space, a basement and mezzanine level.

1 17 30 5 52

52,028 351 556 719 26,258
17,168
8,602
0
52,028

5280 100

52

0 0

52 1 0 0

Because the project is being developed under the City & County of Honolulu's Chapter
32 of the 2021 Revised Ordinances (Bill 7 [2019]), the project was condominiumized
into a residential condo and a commercial condo.  The residential condo 
encompasses all affordable residential areas of the building.  The commercial condo 
encompasses the ground floor retail units and a portion of the basement.



11 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

Section V.  Financing 

Pursuant to §5(7) of the Proclamation Rules, an Applicant shall describe the proposed financing 
for the project, including how the project will be financed during the development and construction 
of the project, and upon completion of the project and sources of repayment of such financing. 
This should include any proposed grants, donations, loans, bonds, tax credits, or other sources 
of financial resources. 

A. Sponsor Equity
Indicate the total amount of funds that the Applicant is contributing to the project.  Only list project resources that will 
remain permanently in the project. 

$       Cash 

$       Land (provide an explanation below) 

$      “In Kind” (provide an explanation below) 

$       Total Sponsor Equity 

Land Value: 

      

In Kind: 

   

8,411,754
1,079,975
0
9,491,729

land value is representative of equity in the property/land (as-is appraisal value less
existing loan) = $1,079,975

n/a



12
 

Fo
rm

 B
BB

-1
 (1

0/
23

) 

B
.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Fi

na
nc

in
g

So
ur

ce
 

Am
ou

nt
 

Fo
rm

 
(L

oa
n 

or
 

Eq
ui

ty
) 

Se
cu

re
d,

1  
U

ns
ec

ur
ed

 

R
ec

ou
rs

e,
2  

N
on

-R
ec

ou
rs

e 
R

el
at

ed
 P

ar
ty

 

C
om

m
itt

ed
 

(Y
es

 o
r N

o)
 

In
t. 

R
at

e 
/ T

er
m

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1  I
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

is
 s

ec
ur

ed
 b

y 
a 

m
or

tg
ag

e,
 p

le
as

e 
in

di
ca

te
 th

e 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
or

tg
ag

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 a
ll 

fin
an

ci
ng

. 
2  I

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
in

g 
is

 re
co

ur
se

, i
de

nt
ify

 w
ho

 th
e 

gu
ar

an
to

r i
s 

an
d 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

gu
ar

an
ty

. 

BO
H
Pe
rm
-E
xi
st
in
g

$5
,9
50
,0
25

Lo
an

Se
cu
re
d

R
ec
ou
rs
e

Ye
s

7.
33
%
/2
ye
ar
s

BO
H
C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n
-N
ew

$6
,5
49
,9
75

Lo
an

Se
cu
re
d

R
ec
ou
rs
e

Ye
s

7.
33
%
/2
ye
ar
s

$1
2,
00
0,
00
0
Lo
an

Se
cu
re
d

R
ec
ou
rs
e

Ye
s

7.
33
%
/2
ye
ar
s



13
 

Fo
rm

 B
BB

-1
 (1

0/
23

) 

C
.

Pe
rm

an
en

t F
in

an
ci

ng

So
ur

ce
 

Am
ou

nt
 

Fo
rm

 
(L

oa
n 

or
 

Eq
ui

ty
) 

Se
cu

re
d,

3  
U

ns
ec

ur
ed

 

R
ec

ou
rs

e,
4  

N
on

-R
ec

ou
rs

e 
R

el
at

ed
 P

ar
ty

 

C
om

m
itt

ed
 

(Y
es

 o
r N

o)
 

In
t. 

R
at

e 
/ T

er
m

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3  I
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

is
 s

ec
ur

ed
 b

y 
a 

m
or

tg
ag

e,
 p

le
as

e 
in

di
ca

te
 th

e 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
or

tg
ag

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 a
ll 

fin
an

ci
ng

. 
4  I

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
in

g 
is

 re
co

ur
se

, i
de

nt
ify

 w
ho

 th
e 

gu
ar

an
to

r i
s 

an
d 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

gu
ar

an
ty

. 

Ba
nk
of
H
aw
ai
i-
Pe
rm
an
en
t
$1
2,
00
0,
00
0
Lo
an

Se
cu
re
d

R
ec
ou
rs
e

Ye
s

6.
05
%
/8
ye
ar
s

$1
2,
00
0,
00
0
Lo
an

Se
cu
re
d

R
ec
ou
rs
e

Ye
s

6.
05
%
/8
ye
ar
s



14 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

Section V.  Plan for Community Input 

Pursuant to §5(8) of the Proclamation Rules, the Applicant shall present a plan for obtaining 
public and stakeholder input. 

A. Public Notice Requirement
 The Applicant certifies that it will publish, at minimum, one public notice of wide circulation regarding the 

project which shall offer the public a period for review and submission of written comments of at least thirty 
(30) days from the date of publication.

B. Public Meeting
Describe below the Applicant’s plans to hold, at minimum, one public meeting (e.g., via Neighborhood Board 
meeting, public hearing, or town hall) during which public input shall be accepted and documented.  Include the 
proposed date(s) for public hearing. 

Additional information may be included as an attachment to this Application. 

C. Stakeholder Consultation
Describe below the Applicant’s plans to consult with appropriate stakeholder groups regarding any impacts to 
environmental or cultural resources, if such impacts are reasonably anticipated 

Additional information may be included as an attachment to this Application. 

✔

      present/discuss project at Neighborhood Board Number 13 Downtown/Chinatown 
meeting on December 7th 

No      anticipated environmental or cultural resources - building is existing in the heart of 
Downtown Honolulu.

On June 6, 2023 SHPD recommended painting new wall openings along the exterior 
facades to match the exterior wall treatment and minimize their visual impact, and to 
commission an architectural recordation of the historic resource through completing a 
Historic American Building Survey (HABS) and donating it to the National Park 
Service/National Archives to document the building prior to alteration and establish 
an archival record.  We agreed to the recommendations in a letter back to SHPD 
dated June 26, 2023.



15 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

Section VI.  Justification for Certification 

Pursuant to §5(9) of the Proclamation Rules, the Applicant shall provide a full list of all agency 
approvals the project would otherwise be required to obtain absent certification under the 
Proclamation, including any waivers, variances, and/or exemptions being sought from said 
agencies. 

A. Exempted Approvals
List and describe all approvals the Applicant would otherwise be required to obtain for the project absent certification 
under the Proclamation and waiver of the applicable section or chapter of the Hawaii Revised Statutes.  If possible, 
indicate which the department or agency would otherwise manage the approval being waived 

Additional information may be included as an attachment to this application. 

Development Standard or Approval Waived Statute / Ordinance 

Department of Education School Impact Fees Sections 302A-1601 to 1612, HRS



16 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

B. Other Waivers, Variances, & Exemptions Sought
Indicate below any waivers, variances, and/or exemptions the Applicant is seeking or will seek from a 
departments/agencies identified in subsection A above. 

Additional information may be included as an attachment to this Application. 

Department / Agency Waiver Description 

N/A N/A



17 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

Certification and Assurances 

Whereas,      (the “Applicant”) is applying to the Build 
Beyond Barriers Working Group (the “BBB”) to have the terms of the Governor’s Second 
Proclamation Relating to Affordable Housing (the “Proclamation”), dated October 24, 2023, and 
any succeeding Proclamation issued thereafter, apply their project. 

Whereas, the Applicant understands that it is necessary that certain conditions be satisfied 
as part of the Application requirements. 

Therefore, the Applicant certifies as follows: 

1. The Applicant is eligible for assistance under the Rules Relating to the Implementation of
the Second Proclamation Relating to Affordable Housing (the “Rules”).

2. The Applicant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the BBB for any and all losses, costs,
damages, expenses and liabilities whatsoever in nature or kind (including, but not limited
to attorney’s fees, litigation and court costs, amounts paid in settlement, and amounts paid
to discharge judgment, any loss from judgment from the Internal Revenue Service) directly
and indirectly resulting from, arising out of, or related to acceptance, consideration and
approval or disapproval of the Application.

3. The Applicant has received, reviewed and accepts all the documents that are attached to
the Application and made a part hereof.

4. The Applicant understands and agrees that the BBB’s receipt of an Application does not
constitute acceptance of the Application.  The BBB reserves the right to return an
Application at any time without taking further action on the Application due to, but not
limited to, the following:

a. Failure to meet the Application submittal requirements.

b. Failure to meet the project criteria set forth in the Rules.

c. Failure to disclose in the Application any known material defects about the
development of the Project, any misrepresentation or fraud.

5. The Applicant further understands and agrees that:

a. The BBB reserves the right to reject any application submitted and may exercise
such right without notice and without liability to any Applicant or other parties for
their expenses incurred in the preparation of an Application.

b. Applications are prepared at the sole risk and expense of the Applicant.  The
completion, receipt, or acceptance of an Application does not commit the BBB to
pay any costs incurred in the preparation of the Application.  The BBB shall not be

1060 Bishop Street, LLC



18 

Form BBB-1 (10/23) 

responsible for any costs incurred by the Applicant due to the rejection of any 
Application. 

6. The Applicant understands and agrees that the BBB in no way represents or warrants to
any party which may include, but is not limited to, any developer, project owner, investor,
or lender that the Project is, in fact, feasible or viable.  No member of the BBB shall be
personally liable concerning any matter arising out of, or in relation to the approval or
disapproval of the Application.

7. The Applicant is responsible to review the applicable federal/state laws to ensure
compliance with current regulations.

8. That the foregoing information and the statements made in this Application are true,
complete, accurate and correct to the best of the Applicant’s knowledge, and hereby
authorizes the BBB to obtain further information and to verify any statement made as it
deems necessary.

9. The Applicant understands that the completed and accepted Application is subject to
Chapter 92F, Hawaii Revised Statutes, the Uniform Information Practices Act of the State
of Hawaii.

In Witness Whereof, the Applicant has caused the document to be executed in its name on the 
 day of , 202 . 

Applicant 

By 
Its 

By 
Its 

Witness 

4th December 3

1060 Bishop Street, LLC

Manager and Member, HICAP, LLC
By Robert K. Kurisu its Member

Duane K. Kurisu



Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

I, the undersigned Director of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
of the State of Hawaii, do hereby certify that according to the
records of this Department,

1060 BISHOP STREET, LLC

was organized under the laws of the State of Hawaii on 12/22/1998 ;
that it is an existing limited liability company in good standing
and is duly authorized to transact business.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
my hand and affixed the seal of the
Department of Commerce and Consumer
Affairs, at Honolulu, Hawaii.

Dated:   November 27, 2023

Director of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

To check the authenticity of this certificate, please visit: http://hbe.ehawaii.gov/documents/authenticate.html
Authentication Code: 483317-COGS_PDF-2251C5

EXHIBIT 1



EXHIBIT 2

























I 
I

fli
I •!j�I-
' l . .. 

-1:"' -..!..:It 

'!,J.m 

j::' 1 

EXHlBITB 

EXHIBrr B 

Pagel of I 

I 

I I 
I 

1: 

! 
11 
�··, 

;v 

I
. 

(u --1 � 
::, 
rJ) 

w 
r= 
0 

. j 
::E 

! (/) u 
<( 

; 
<( 

� \if. lt ll II ii: 

� � ... !" .  'I- '= 

u 
a.:a.: 

H 
"h 

:f .,..,.! 2 • £�
! i
,� .II. 
;;;� 
0:(;i 

C,.J 

I 
., 

! 1
�h J_o ii
�; :i 

IH 
.. " 
:;; 
0: .., 
? 



EXHIBIT 3






















	2023-11-14 Meeting Minutes Draft.pdf
	Housing Team Recommendation to Include 1060 Bishop St.
	BBB Project Application 2023 (1060 Bishop Street) 12.4.2023
	BBB Project Application 2023 (1060 Bishop Street) 12.1.2023 compiled
	BBB Project Application 2023 (1060 Bishop Street) 12.1.2023
	COGS_PDF-2251C5
	deed

	1060 Bishop Street (Condo Map)




